
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES 
 THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2016 - 1:30 PM 
 CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, VERO BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
PRESENT: Chairman, Lawrence Lauffer; Vice Chairman, Honey Minuse; Members: Linda 
Hillman, Norman Wells, Don Croteau, Alternate Member #1, Richard Cahoy and Alternate Member 
#2, Ken Daige  Also Present: Planning and Development Director, Tim McGarry; Project Manager, 
Cheri Fitzgerald; Assistant City Attorney, Peggy Lyon and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo 
 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 

A) Agenda Additions and/or Deletions 
 
None 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A)    Regular Meeting – March 3, 2016  
 
Mrs. Hillman made a motion to approve the minutes of the March 3, 2016 Planning and 
Zoning Board meeting.  Mr. Croteau seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
IV. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 [Quasi-Judicial] 
A) Site Plan Application Submitted by 1745 SR 60, LLC, to Construct a 

14,115 Square Foot Four Story Commercial Building at 1745 20th Street (#SP15-
000021). 

 
The Chairman read Site Plan Application #SP15-000021 for the property located at 1745 20th Street 
by title only. 
 
There was no ex parte communication reported. 
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in staff and all witnesses testifying for today’s public hearing en masse. 
 
Mrs. Cheri Fitzgerald, Project Manager, went over staff’s report with the Board members (attached 
to the original minutes).  Based on staff’s analysis and findings, the staff finds that the proposed site 
plan application meets the provisions for site plan approval and recommends approval of the site 
plan subject to the conditions listed in staff’s report. 
 
Mrs. Minuse asked is the alley in the back being used for vehicular traffic.   
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes. 
 
Mr. Minuse asked is there two-way traffic.  Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes. 
 

                 1  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



Mrs. Minuse asked are there any plans to change it.   
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald said not to her knowledge.   
 
Mrs. Hillman asked for clarification on page two (2) of the Project Description and Fact Sheet for 
Proposed Commercial Building where it states, “Parking is required to be located in the rear of 
building.  The first 30 spaces are exempt and the remainder of the required parking is reduced by 
50%.”   
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald explained that is a unique allowance in the Code for the Downtown Zoning District.  
The first 30 spaces are exempt and after that they are allowed to decrease it by half.   
 
Mr. Croteau said they would need 30 less spaces than they would in another part of the City. 
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald said that is correct.   
 
Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director, explained that they would calculate how 
much parking is required minus 30 spaces and whatever is left they divide it by two. 
 
Mrs. Minuse referred to the elevation and asked how they came up with the correct height.  She 
explained that she was not coming up with the same calculation.   
 
Mr. McGarry reported that it is almost 50 feet to the base of the parapets. 
 
Mrs. Minuse how does that comply with the Code. 
 
Mr. McGarry explained that the Code allows 50 feet plus embellishments and the parapets are the 
embellishments.   
 
Mr. Daige asked what is the total height of the building 
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald answered 57 feet.   
 
Mr. Daige asked if in the future they want to change the top floor to apartments, would that be 
permitted in this zoning. 
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes, but they would have to apply for that change. 
 
Mrs. Minuse said two renderings were submitted that show a difference in the windows at the front 
of the building.  She asked were the windows aesthetic.   
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes.   
 
Mr. Joe Schulke, of Schulke, Bittle and Stoddard, submitted into the record additional renderings of 
the proposed building (attached to the original minutes).  He reported that the alley in the back 
functions as a two-way, but is wide enough for one-way.  He said they did widen the area behind 
their property.  He reported that the height of the building to the roof top is approximately 49 feet, 10 
inches and six-feet eight inches to the top of the parapet.   
 
Mr. Lauffer asked will there be parking in the alley. 
 

                 2  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



Mr. Schulke said they have parking on their site that has access by the alley.   
 
Mr. Daige asked Mr. Schulke to explain the stormwater management on the site.  
 
Mr. Schulke said they would have chambers that consist of multiple pipes under the driveway and all 
the water would remain on site.   
 
Mr. Daige asked would the air-conditioner units be located on the roof or on the first floor. 
 
Mr. Schulke said there would be eight (8) air-conditioner units on the west side of the building that 
would be enclosed by a fence and shrubs.  He said some air-conditioners might eventually be placed 
on the roof noting that they would not be seen because of the parapets.   
 
Mr. Daige said some existing commercial buildings located downtown have air-conditioners that 
whine.   
 
Mr. Schulke said that has not been discussed.  He was certain that they would have rules requiring 
maintenance of the units. 
 
Mrs. Hillman referred to the renderings of the front of the building.  She felt that Alternate A was 
more appealing to the downtown area and would fit in better with the Courthouse and the other 
buildings in the area.   
 
The Chairman opened and closed the public hearing at 2:09 p.m., with no one wishing to be heard. 
 
Mr. Croteau made a motion that the Board approves Site Plan Application #SP15-000021 with 
conditions listed by staff.  Mrs. Minuse seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 with Mr. Wells 
voting yes, Mrs. Hillman yes, Mr. Croteau yes, Mrs. Minuse yes and Mr. Lauffer yes. 
 

        [Quasi-Judicial] 
B) Site Plan Application Submitted by Lee Heaton to Construct a 1,820 Square 

Foot Outdoor Tiki Bar at 3500 Ocean Drive – Vero Beach Hotel and Spa 
(#SP15-000013). 

 
The Chairman read Site Plan Application #SP15-000013 for the property located at 3500 Ocean 
Drive by title only. 
 
There was no ex parte communication reported. 
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in staff and all witnesses testifying for today’s public hearing en masse. 
 
Mr. McGarry went over staff’s report with the Board members (attached to the original minutes).  
Based on staff’s analysis and findings, the staff finds that the proposed site plan application meets 
the provisions for site plan approval and recommends approval of the site plan subject to conditions 
listed in staff’s report.   
 
Mrs. Minuse referred to condition 5 of staff’s report where it states “The applicant shall meet with 
the Planning and Development Department to discuss appropriate options for accommodating 
parking of employees within 60 calendar days of the termination of the GoLine.”  She said it reads 
like the “GoLine” was shutting down.  She suggested that they change it to state “should the GoLine 
Shuttle be terminated.” 

                 3  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



 
Mr. Croteau felt condition five (5) was weak because it doesn’t commit if there is any change.  He 
felt that it should be a requirement that they agree to a plan if something happens with the shuttle. 
 
Mr. McGarry noted that this is over and above the Code.  He felt that this would be a discussion 
where they could look at alternatives.    
 
Mr. Daige said a fee is involved with valet parking even if it is free because it is appropriate to tip.  
He said people will try to park somewhere else because they don’t want to pay even if it is just to tip. 
  
Mrs. Minuse referred to the site plan where it references that beach vegetation does not exist and 
they would be doing a dune crossover.  She asked how does this work with the turtle Ordinance. 
 
Mr. McGarry did not think they were going to do the dune crossover. 
 
Mrs. Minuse noted that the lighting on the tiki bar would not shine down on the beach. 
 
Mr. McGarry said that is correct. 
 
Mr. Lauffer said they have met all the criteria for the lighting. 
 
Mr. McGarry said that is correct.   
 
Mrs. Peggy Lyon, Assistant City Attorney, noted that the City has a very strict turtle Ordinance that 
was approved by the State. 
 
Mr. Cahoy questioned street access to the new tiki bar. 
 
Mr. McGarry said access to the tiki bar was not changing.  They would have to go through the hotel 
to get to the tiki bar.   
 
Mr. Cahoy asked what kind of controls will be in place during the construction phase.   
 
Mr. McGarry said the applicant would need to answer that question. 
 
Mr. Lauffer asked is there any existing vegetation between the two properties on the south side.  He 
asked can the people living in the condominium to the south currently see the table umbrellas that 
cover the dining area outside.     
 
Mr. McGarry answered yes.   
 
Mr. Croteau said the tiki bar would be much taller than the table umbrellas.   
 
Mr. George Heaton, owner of the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa, said that he has been sworn in.  He said 
there is currently dining in the area and they are just covering it.  He said the area is primarily for 
hotel guests, although there are people who walk in.  He said they do require valet parking on site 
24/7 and no one is allowed to park their own vehicle.  He said they did assist in the funding on the 
GoLine shuttle because they realize there is a parking problem on the beach and they are happy to 
continue to help assist in funding the shuttle.  He said they have never had a noise complaint from a 
neighbor that he is aware of.  The only complaint they ever had was by one of their guests.  He noted 
that there is currently a bar in this area.  They are not doing anything new.  They are just covering it.  

                 4  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



He said there is a small hedge there, but their neighbors can see on the property.  They have proposed 
putting in a taller thicker hedge.      
 
Mr. Cahoy referred to the traffic and parking problems along Ocean Drive.  He asked will the 
construction vehicles be parking in the spaces along Ocean Drive. 
 
Mr. Heaton said they have not discussed where the vehicles will be parking at this point.  He 
clarified that they would not be building a tiki bar with a grass hut.  It would be an open air building 
consisting of beams and a roof.   The construction is very simple and it will take place during the off 
season.   
 
Mrs. Minuse said they would not have music after 10:00 p.m.  She asked how long do they keep the 
swimming pool open and do they provide music poolside.   
 
Mr. Heaton said they have music playing during the day.  He noted that sometimes they have live 
music, which is small like a steel drummer or something to that effect.   
 
Mr. Duncan Clements, Manager of the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa, said the pool bar closes between 
10:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m., depending on the patrons who are there.  He said they have many rooms 
that overlook the pool area so they are very cognizant of noise and make sure it is kept to a 
minimum.  He said they close the swimming pool around 5:00 p.m. or 6:00 p.m.  He noted that they 
don’t prohibit guests from having a quiet swim, but they don’t want the pool in use later in the 
evening. 
 
Mr. Croteau asked would they be building a new dune crossover or rebuilding the existing one. 
 
Mr. Heaton said an additional crossover was part of the Department of Environmental Protection 
(DEP) permit.  But, they do not anticipate building one.   
 
Mrs. Hillman asked is the proposed tiki bar an addition to the bar that already exists. 
 
Mr. Heaton said it would replace the existing bar.  He noted that they would also be covering the 
existing dining area. 
 
Mr. Daige asked what will they be doing to handle the stormwater.  He asked do they have the 
capacity to handle it on site.   
 
Mr. McGarry explained that the impervious surface area is not changing.   
 
Mr. Daige asked what month would construction take place. 
 
Mr. Heaton said it has not been determined, but it would be some time in the summer months. 
 
The Chairman opened the public hearing at 2:52 p.m.   
 
Mr. Irv Roberts, President of the Board of Directors of the Reef Ocean Resort, said that he has been 
sworn in.  He said the Reef Ocean Resort is a 60 unit condominium that has 3,060 owners.  He noted 
that they are not transient, but owners.  He said that he is present today representing the property 
owners.  Since the announcement of the hearing they received 420 objections to this project.  He 
reported that he also received 51 objections from residents of Village Spires this morning.  He said 
they have several objections to this project, with the first being the noise.  He noted that this project 

                 5  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



includes an additional 20 seats.  He said there are 72 seats in the bar area and an additional 46 seats 
within 150 feet of the Reef Ocean Resort.  He said as bar activity increases, so does the noise level.  
If they add band music it becomes a significant issue.  The bands play during the day and seldom in 
the evening.  Now they are looking at letting them play until 10:00 p.m.  Noise is a big concern to 
them and it doesn’t appear that the planned landscaping would reduce the sound that will be coming 
from the complex.  Their second issue is parking.  He said in order to protect the parking of Bobby’s 
Restaurant (they are their landlord) and their own parking, they hired two (2) parking attendants at a 
cost of $30,000 each year.  Every day there are three (3) or four (4) angry customers who want to 
park in their lot in order to attend an activity at the hotel.  Their third issue is with drainage.  He said 
they are going to cover the sand with stone pavers and they are very concerned about the rainwater 
coming from the pavers and from the roof running onto their property.  Another issue is the fact that 
a walk-in freezer is going to be added, which has a large condenser that would sit along the setback 
line.  They respectfully request that the application be rejected. 
 
Mr. Wells said they heard from 420 of their 3,060 residents, which is less than 15%. 
 
Mr. Roberts said they just heard about this on March 4th.   
 
Mr. Lauffer said hotel management doesn’t want to disturb their guests, which he felt was a benefit 
to the Reef Ocean Resort.  He felt they both wanted the same thing, which is an appropriate result for 
both the timeshare residents and the guests of the hotel.     
 
Mr. Roberts clarified that they have owners, not transients that come and go.   
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Matt Mitts, Assistant City Engineer.   
 
Mr. Mitts said that he reviewed the drainage elements of this plan.  He explained in drainage reviews 
they look to see where the runoff is going.  The other thing they look at is water quality.  He reported 
that they looked at the impervious area they currently have on the site and then they looked at what 
they would be increasing it by, which fell under the City’s threshold of 1,500 square feet.  This 
means that the net impervious area they are adding did not trip a requirement for them to have more 
retention.  He reported that the runoff would work as it presently works. 
 
Mr. Lauffer said then the runoff would not go to the Resort’s property. 
 
Mr. Mitts said that is correct.   
 
Mr. Daige asked where are they placing the walk-in freezer. 
 
Mr. Roberts said it would be to the east along the property line.  He reported that the pool equipment 
is sitting in the setback area.   
 
Mr. Lauffer asked where on the plans does it show the walk in freezer. 
 
Mr. McGarry explained that the freezer was not part of this application.   
 
Mr. Jack Barrian (spelling may be incorrect) said that he has been sworn in.  He said that he is the 
Treasurer for the Reef Ocean Resort.  He reported almost 300 people own time in Building 100 and 
he was concerned about the money because the people who own in this building are not going to be 
happy.   
 

                 6  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



Ms. Beverly Myers said that she has been sworn in.  She briefly went over a prepared statement that 
she submitted into the record (attached to the original minutes).  She said the people, the turtles, and 
the environment does not need this. 
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. John Anderson.  Mr. Anderson said that his family owns five 
(5) units at the Reef Ocean Resort and they discussed purchasing another unit today.  The reason he 
brought this up was because the statement that only 15% of the residents responded was erroneous 
(they submitted one (1) form of being opposed to the project for five (5) units that are owned by 
himself, his wife, and their sons).   
 
Mrs. Hillman asked Mr. Anderson if he was referring to owning six (6) units or six (6) months.   
 
Mr. Anderson said they own six (6) weeks that they use as a family.  They submitted one (1) form, 
not six (6) forms.   
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Charles Hankle (spelling may be incorrect).   
 
Mr. Hankle said that he owns week 23 and 24 in Building 100.  This tiki bar is going to be 25 feet 
from his window.  He did not think it was fair.  He questioned why they can’t move the tiki bar to the 
other side of the property.   
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Ms. Theresa Williams. 
 
Ms. Williams said that she owns two (2) weeks and she enjoys going to sleep listening to the ocean.  
She said they don’t build a bandstand if they are not going to have a band.  She felt that her vacation 
has been spoiled just by thinking about this.   
 
Mr. Croteau said the hotel currently has seating in the area.  He asked has there been a problem. 
 
Ms. Williams answered no.  She said the lights have been a continuing problem for the turtles.  If 
they have a bandstand she would have a problem because she likes the quiet and wants to relax. 
 
Mr. Croteau said there are no plans to have a bandstand.   
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Ms. Barbara Jafrita (spelling may be incorrect). 
 
Ms. Jafrita said that she was not against development, but she does understand their concerns.  She 
said not only does light disturb the turtles, but noise does as well.  She said the parking situation is 
impossible.   
 
Ms. Dorene Pinkerton said that she has been sworn in.  She said that she has been in Vero Beach 
since 1974 and they purchased their unit in 1979 or 1980.  They are upstairs in the 300 building 
above Bobby’s Restaurant.  She said that she does not want to hear music, whether it is a band or 
not.  She did not think that shrubbery was going to be a sound barrier from the types of plants that 
can grow on the beach.  She echoed everyone who has spoken today.   
 
Mr. David Cederhome said that he has been sworn in.  He reported that he lives in the Moorings and 
has been in Vero Beach for more than 20 years.  He said that his sons came home to attend a 
wedding and after the wedding they went to the bar at the hotel.  They called him to pick them up at 
around 10:00 p.m. or 11:00 p.m. and there were still about 40 or 50 people there, most of whom were 
drinking.  There was no supervision as to how much alcohol was being served to them.   

                 7  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



 
Ms. Elli McElroy said that she has been sworn in.  She reported that she lives in Village Spires and 
enjoys going to the Cobalt Restaurant and to the hotel.  She felt that the hotel has always been 
conscientious about being a good neighbor.   She said that she was concerned about the tiki bar, 
particularly for the residents of the Reef Ocean Resort.  She felt that there was a compromise 
possible, which is to put the tiki bar near the current building and still use their expanded space for 
dining.   
 
Mr. Lauffer explained that they, as a Board, cannot try to influence anyone unless they are in 
violation of one of the rules.  Currently, the hotel is in compliance and they have the right to locate 
the tiki bar where they want it to be.   
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Frank Cole (spelling may be incorrect). 
 
Mr. Cole said that he and his wife own five (5) weeks.   The problem that he has heard today is 
twofold.  They keep discussing dining and if it is just dining then why are they moving the bar 
further towards the ocean.  They already have a bar that is covered.  If they are interested in having a 
cover for dining, that is fine.  He said that he has not heard what time they close.  He asked do they 
close at 10:00 p.m. when the music stops or do they stay open until 2:00 a.m.  Opening an additional 
bar area is going to bring more people, which will cause more parking problems.  He asked the 
Board to think about the outcome for the following years before they make their decision. 
 
Mr. Rick Muller said that he has been sworn in.  He said that he has been a resident of Vero Beach 
since he was 24 years old.   He said over the past few years it seems like things are changing.  He 
said a band has been playing every day and every evening just down the street from them and a few 
years ago that didn’t happen.  He reported that he has three generations who own seven (7) weeks at 
the Reef Ocean Resort.   He asked the Board to consider what Vero Beach has always been and 
known as and what has been done to keep it from becoming a “Daytona Beach.”  He said that it is 
starting to go into that direction.  He said that he lives in northern Ohio and comes a long way to be 
here.  He said that he has been coming here for 32 years. 
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in Ms. Debbie Heathan (spelling may be incorrect),  
 
Ms. Heathan said that she is the Manager of the Reef Ocean Resort and she does get noise 
complaints on the bar that is currently there.  She liked that they typically close around 10:00 p.m.  
She asked will the new tiki bar close at 10:00 p.m.  She asked will the bar be shut down at 10:00 
p.m. or will there be people 25 feet from her 100 building talking until 2:00 a.m.  She said there 
might not be music after 10:00 p.m., but there are a lot of voices heard until 2:00 a.m.  She said bars 
are permitted to stay open until 2:00 a.m.  She asked will this be one of them.  She said at 8:00 a.m. 
parking on both sides of the strip are filled by employees of the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa.  She 
asked are they going to be terminated.  She said the shuttle stops at 6:00 p.m. and there are about 300 
employees in the afternoon/evening shift who have to park somewhere so they are parking along the 
street.     
 
Mrs. Hillman asked Ms. Heathan if she has ever received any complaints about Bobby’s Restaurant 
being open until 2:00 a.m. 
 
Ms. Heathan said Bobby’s closes at 1:00 a.m. and they don’t allow their customers on the outside 
patio after midnight. 
 
Mrs. Hillman said that she has been there when people have been on the patio past midnight. 

                 8  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



 
Ms. Heaton said her Security Guard is there to insure that if there are people on the patio that they 
keep the noise down.    
 
Mr. Heaton said that he doesn’t know where their afternoon/evening employees park.  They are not 
permitted to park on site and if they are parking on the street they could be ticketed because they are 
only allowed to park there for a certain amount of time.  They do not permit their employees to leave 
in order to move their vehicles from one space to another.     
 
Ms. Heathan asked how long the bar will be open. 
 
Mr. Heaton said they are allowed to stay open as late at Bobby’s is allowed to be open, but they 
don’t.  They close around 10:00 p.m. and he didn’t think this would be any different.  This is a 
facility for their guests, although they do have outside people come to the bar.  He said they do not 
have bands and if they do it is during the day and it is not a five (5) piece band.  He said they do have 
music playing from their speakers by the pool every day. 
 
Mr. McGarry asked would you be willing to close the tiki bar at 10:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Heaton answered no.  He said there haven’t been any complaints that he is aware of.  He said 
there was an issue with the turtles and they put up screening to stop them from crawling onto their 
property.   
 
Ms. Heathan said they could stay open until 2:00 a.m. 
 
Mr. Heaton said that is correct.   
 
Ms. Heathan said their employees are recommended to take the shuttle, which stops at 6:00 p.m.  She 
said nothing is being done about the employees who are parking on the street. 
 
Mr. Heaton said their employees are not required to take the shuttle, but they are not permitted to 
park on site.  He clarified that Vero Beach Hotel and Spa is a condo/hotel.  There are owners who are 
allowed to use the units 45 days a year.  He said that they love Vero Beach and are heavily invested 
in Vero Beach.  They don’t want this community to turn into a “South Beach.”  He said there is an 
existing bar that has been there since 2007.  There will not be a bandstand and there will not be a 
band playing on a daily basis.  He said they don’t want complaints from their guests so they are not 
going to have bands/noise disturbing them.  That is why the beach bar closes early.  He said they 
cannot control where people park, but they do provide free valet parking.  He noted that the lighting 
under the bar was approved by the DEP and would not be facing the beach area.   
 
Mrs. Minuse asked if she was correct that there were no major changes except putting a roof over the 
bar and dining tables.    
 
Mr. Heaton said it would be shifted a little, but the business already exists.  He said they do have a 
band that plays on some weekends, but it is a steel drum type of band.  They do have music playing 
daily by the pool, which they wouldn’t have if they were receiving complaints. 
 
Mr. Croteau said the difference in what is currently there and what is being proposed is an additional 
22 seats. 
 
The Board took a break at 4:15 p.m. and the meeting reconvened at 4:21 p.m. 

                 9  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



 
Mr. David Cedarhome said that he heard the comment that this is an existing facility and they were 
merely putting a roof on.  He asked what is their projected change in revenue as a result of this and 
what percentage of additional traffic are they projecting.    
 
Mr. Lauffer asked Mrs. Lyon if these were fair questions to be asking the applicant. 
 
Mrs. Lyon said it is up to the applicant if he wants to respond.  
 
Mr. Heaton said they are not expecting a large increase in revenue or in traffic.  He said it is just a 
better amenity for their hotel guests.   
 
Ms. Beverly Myers said that she knows this is a done deal because the project is within Code and it 
is going to pass.  She said being within the Code doesn’t make it right.  She said the Code needs to 
be revised.  She said what they are doing by repositioning the facilities is taking the impact away 
from their guests and putting it on the residents of the Reef Ocean Resort.  
 
Mr. Roberts clarified that they were not putting a roof over what is currently there.  The concern is 
the concentration of 72 seats at the bar and another 46 seats within 150 feet of the line.  The noise 
problem is a “concentration” problem that is going to come from the bar.     
 
Mr. McGarry said staff has not heard any testimony that was substantial competent evidence.  There 
are concerns, but staff finds this meets the Code and should be approved.   
 
Mr. Daige asked can the tiki bar be moved. 
 
Mr. Lauffer noted that they would have to change the entire site plan.  
 
The Chairman closed the public hearing at 4:31 p.m., with no one else wishing to be heard. 
 
Mr. Croteau asked did staff discuss an alternate location for the tiki bar. 
 
Mr. McGarry said staff raised some concerns about it, but there were other constraints that the Vero 
Beach Hotel and Spa would have if they moved it.   
 
Mrs. Hillman asked is it possible to put a wall on the side of the tiki bar that abuts the Reef Ocean 
Resort.   
 
Mr. Heaton said that is not something they would do because it is an open air facility.  He said they 
would be happy to look into some type of sound screening.   
 
Mrs. Minuse thanked everyone for coming to today’s hearing and voicing their concerns.  She felt 
that their concerns have been addressed, noting that parking is a problem on the barrier island and the 
City has been working on it.   
 
Mr. Cahoy referred to condition five (5) of staff’s report where it states, “The applicant shall meet 
with the Planning and Development Department to discuss appropriate options for accommodating 
parking of employees within 60 calendar days of the termination of the GoLine.”  He felt this 
condition was open-ended, had no teeth, and should be taken out.   
 

                 10  03/17/16   P&Z 
 



Mr. Wells made a motion that the Board approves Site Plan Application #SP15-000013 with 
conditions listed by staff.  Mrs. Minuse seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 with Mr. Wells 
voting yes, Mrs. Hillman yes, Mr. Croteau yes, Mrs. Minuse yes and Mr. Lauffer yes. 
  
V. PLANNING DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 
None 
 
VI. BOARD MEMBERS’ MATTERS 
 
Mr. James O’Connor reported that the City is in the process of changing the three-hour parking to 
two-hour parking on the beachside at the request of the Vero Beach Retailer’s Association and the 
Oceanside Business Association. 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Today’s meeting adjourned at 4:48 p.m. 
 
/sp 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                 11  03/17/16   P&Z 
 


	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES
	 THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2016 - 1:30 PM
	 CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, VERO BEACH, FLORIDA
	PRESENT: Chairman, Lawrence Lauffer; Vice Chairman, Honey Minuse; Members: Linda Hillman, Norman Wells, Don Croteau, Alternate Member #1, Richard Cahoy and Alternate Member #2, Ken Daige  Also Present: Planning and Development Director, Tim McGarry; Project Manager, Cheri Fitzgerald; Assistant City Attorney, Peggy Lyon and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo
	I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	A) Agenda Additions and/or Deletions
	None
	II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A)    Regular Meeting – March 3, 2016 
	Mrs. Hillman made a motion to approve the minutes of the March 3, 2016 Planning and Zoning Board meeting.  Mr. Croteau seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	III. PUBLIC COMMENT
	None
	IV. PUBLIC HEARING
	 [Quasi-Judicial]
	A) Site Plan Application Submitted by 1745 SR 60, LLC, to Construct a 14,115 Square Foot Four Story Commercial Building at 1745 20th Street (#SP15-000021).
	The Chairman read Site Plan Application #SP15-000021 for the property located at 1745 20th Street by title only.
	There was no ex parte communication reported.
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in staff and all witnesses testifying for today’s public hearing en masse.
	Mrs. Cheri Fitzgerald, Project Manager, went over staff’s report with the Board members (attached to the original minutes).  Based on staff’s analysis and findings, the staff finds that the proposed site plan application meets the provisions for site plan approval and recommends approval of the site plan subject to the conditions listed in staff’s report.
	Mrs. Minuse asked is the alley in the back being used for vehicular traffic.  
	Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes.
	Mr. Minuse asked is there two-way traffic.  Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes.
	Mrs. Minuse asked are there any plans to change it.  
	Mrs. Fitzgerald said not to her knowledge.  
	Mrs. Hillman asked for clarification on page two (2) of the Project Description and Fact Sheet for Proposed Commercial Building where it states, “Parking is required to be located in the rear of building.  The first 30 spaces are exempt and the remainder of the required parking is reduced by 50%.”  
	Mrs. Fitzgerald explained that is a unique allowance in the Code for the Downtown Zoning District.  The first 30 spaces are exempt and after that they are allowed to decrease it by half.  
	Mr. Croteau said they would need 30 less spaces than they would in another part of the City.
	Mrs. Fitzgerald said that is correct.  
	Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director, explained that they would calculate how much parking is required minus 30 spaces and whatever is left they divide it by two.
	Mrs. Minuse referred to the elevation and asked how they came up with the correct height.  She explained that she was not coming up with the same calculation.  
	Mr. McGarry reported that it is almost 50 feet to the base of the parapets.
	Mrs. Minuse how does that comply with the Code.
	Mr. McGarry explained that the Code allows 50 feet plus embellishments and the parapets are the embellishments.  
	Mr. Daige asked what is the total height of the building
	Mrs. Fitzgerald answered 57 feet.  
	Mr. Daige asked if in the future they want to change the top floor to apartments, would that be permitted in this zoning.
	Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes, but they would have to apply for that change.
	Mrs. Minuse said two renderings were submitted that show a difference in the windows at the front of the building.  She asked were the windows aesthetic.  
	Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes.  
	Mr. Joe Schulke, of Schulke, Bittle and Stoddard, submitted into the record additional renderings of the proposed building (attached to the original minutes).  He reported that the alley in the back functions as a two-way, but is wide enough for one-way.  He said they did widen the area behind their property.  He reported that the height of the building to the roof top is approximately 49 feet, 10 inches and six-feet eight inches to the top of the parapet.  
	Mr. Lauffer asked will there be parking in the alley.
	Mr. Schulke said they have parking on their site that has access by the alley.  
	Mr. Daige asked Mr. Schulke to explain the stormwater management on the site. 
	Mr. Schulke said they would have chambers that consist of multiple pipes under the driveway and all the water would remain on site.  
	Mr. Daige asked would the air-conditioner units be located on the roof or on the first floor.
	Mr. Schulke said there would be eight (8) air-conditioner units on the west side of the building that would be enclosed by a fence and shrubs.  He said some air-conditioners might eventually be placed on the roof noting that they would not be seen because of the parapets.  
	Mr. Daige said some existing commercial buildings located downtown have air-conditioners that whine.  
	Mr. Schulke said that has not been discussed.  He was certain that they would have rules requiring maintenance of the units.
	Mrs. Hillman referred to the renderings of the front of the building.  She felt that Alternate A was more appealing to the downtown area and would fit in better with the Courthouse and the other buildings in the area.  
	The Chairman opened and closed the public hearing at 2:09 p.m., with no one wishing to be heard.
	Mr. Croteau made a motion that the Board approves Site Plan Application #SP15-000021 with conditions listed by staff.  Mrs. Minuse seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 with Mr. Wells voting yes, Mrs. Hillman yes, Mr. Croteau yes, Mrs. Minuse yes and Mr. Lauffer yes.
	        [Quasi-Judicial]
	B) Site Plan Application Submitted by Lee Heaton to Construct a 1,820 Square Foot Outdoor Tiki Bar at 3500 Ocean Drive – Vero Beach Hotel and Spa (#SP15000013).
	The Chairman read Site Plan Application #SP15-000013 for the property located at 3500 Ocean Drive by title only.
	There was no ex parte communication reported.
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in staff and all witnesses testifying for today’s public hearing en masse.
	Mr. McGarry went over staff’s report with the Board members (attached to the original minutes).  Based on staff’s analysis and findings, the staff finds that the proposed site plan application meets the provisions for site plan approval and recommends approval of the site plan subject to conditions listed in staff’s report.  
	Mrs. Minuse referred to condition 5 of staff’s report where it states “The applicant shall meet with the Planning and Development Department to discuss appropriate options for accommodating parking of employees within 60 calendar days of the termination of the GoLine.”  She said it reads like the “GoLine” was shutting down.  She suggested that they change it to state “should the GoLine Shuttle be terminated.”
	Mr. Croteau felt condition five (5) was weak because it doesn’t commit if there is any change.  He felt that it should be a requirement that they agree to a plan if something happens with the shuttle.
	Mr. McGarry noted that this is over and above the Code.  He felt that this would be a discussion where they could look at alternatives.   
	Mr. Daige said a fee is involved with valet parking even if it is free because it is appropriate to tip.  He said people will try to park somewhere else because they don’t want to pay even if it is just to tip.  
	Mrs. Minuse referred to the site plan where it references that beach vegetation does not exist and they would be doing a dune crossover.  She asked how does this work with the turtle Ordinance.
	Mr. McGarry did not think they were going to do the dune crossover.
	Mrs. Minuse noted that the lighting on the tiki bar would not shine down on the beach.
	Mr. McGarry said that is correct.
	Mr. Lauffer said they have met all the criteria for the lighting.
	Mr. McGarry said that is correct.  
	Mrs. Peggy Lyon, Assistant City Attorney, noted that the City has a very strict turtle Ordinance that was approved by the State.
	Mr. Cahoy questioned street access to the new tiki bar.
	Mr. McGarry said access to the tiki bar was not changing.  They would have to go through the hotel to get to the tiki bar.  
	Mr. Cahoy asked what kind of controls will be in place during the construction phase.  
	Mr. McGarry said the applicant would need to answer that question.
	Mr. Lauffer asked is there any existing vegetation between the two properties on the south side.  He asked can the people living in the condominium to the south currently see the table umbrellas that cover the dining area outside.    
	Mr. McGarry answered yes.  
	Mr. Croteau said the tiki bar would be much taller than the table umbrellas.  
	Mr. George Heaton, owner of the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa, said that he has been sworn in.  He said there is currently dining in the area and they are just covering it.  He said the area is primarily for hotel guests, although there are people who walk in.  He said they do require valet parking on site 24/7 and no one is allowed to park their own vehicle.  He said they did assist in the funding on the GoLine shuttle because they realize there is a parking problem on the beach and they are happy to continue to help assist in funding the shuttle.  He said they have never had a noise complaint from a neighbor that he is aware of.  The only complaint they ever had was by one of their guests.  He noted that there is currently a bar in this area.  They are not doing anything new.  They are just covering it.  He said there is a small hedge there, but their neighbors can see on the property.  They have proposed putting in a taller thicker hedge.     
	Mr. Cahoy referred to the traffic and parking problems along Ocean Drive.  He asked will the construction vehicles be parking in the spaces along Ocean Drive.
	Mr. Heaton said they have not discussed where the vehicles will be parking at this point.  He clarified that they would not be building a tiki bar with a grass hut.  It would be an open air building consisting of beams and a roof.   The construction is very simple and it will take place during the off season.  
	Mrs. Minuse said they would not have music after 10:00 p.m.  She asked how long do they keep the swimming pool open and do they provide music poolside.  
	Mr. Heaton said they have music playing during the day.  He noted that sometimes they have live music, which is small like a steel drummer or something to that effect.  
	Mr. Duncan Clements, Manager of the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa, said the pool bar closes between 10:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m., depending on the patrons who are there.  He said they have many rooms that overlook the pool area so they are very cognizant of noise and make sure it is kept to a minimum.  He said they close the swimming pool around 5:00 p.m. or 6:00 p.m.  He noted that they don’t prohibit guests from having a quiet swim, but they don’t want the pool in use later in the evening.
	Mr. Croteau asked would they be building a new dune crossover or rebuilding the existing one.
	Mr. Heaton said an additional crossover was part of the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) permit.  But, they do not anticipate building one.  
	Mrs. Hillman asked is the proposed tiki bar an addition to the bar that already exists.
	Mr. Heaton said it would replace the existing bar.  He noted that they would also be covering the existing dining area.
	Mr. Daige asked what will they be doing to handle the stormwater.  He asked do they have the capacity to handle it on site.  
	Mr. McGarry explained that the impervious surface area is not changing.  
	Mr. Daige asked what month would construction take place.
	Mr. Heaton said it has not been determined, but it would be some time in the summer months.
	The Chairman opened the public hearing at 2:52 p.m.  
	Mr. Irv Roberts, President of the Board of Directors of the Reef Ocean Resort, said that he has been sworn in.  He said the Reef Ocean Resort is a 60 unit condominium that has 3,060 owners.  He noted that they are not transient, but owners.  He said that he is present today representing the property owners.  Since the announcement of the hearing they received 420 objections to this project.  He reported that he also received 51 objections from residents of Village Spires this morning.  He said they have several objections to this project, with the first being the noise.  He noted that this project includes an additional 20 seats.  He said there are 72 seats in the bar area and an additional 46 seats within 150 feet of the Reef Ocean Resort.  He said as bar activity increases, so does the noise level.  If they add band music it becomes a significant issue.  The bands play during the day and seldom in the evening.  Now they are looking at letting them play until 10:00 p.m.  Noise is a big concern to them and it doesn’t appear that the planned landscaping would reduce the sound that will be coming from the complex.  Their second issue is parking.  He said in order to protect the parking of Bobby’s Restaurant (they are their landlord) and their own parking, they hired two (2) parking attendants at a cost of $30,000 each year.  Every day there are three (3) or four (4) angry customers who want to park in their lot in order to attend an activity at the hotel.  Their third issue is with drainage.  He said they are going to cover the sand with stone pavers and they are very concerned about the rainwater coming from the pavers and from the roof running onto their property.  Another issue is the fact that a walk-in freezer is going to be added, which has a large condenser that would sit along the setback line.  They respectfully request that the application be rejected.
	Mr. Wells said they heard from 420 of their 3,060 residents, which is less than 15%.
	Mr. Roberts said they just heard about this on March 4th.  
	Mr. Lauffer said hotel management doesn’t want to disturb their guests, which he felt was a benefit to the Reef Ocean Resort.  He felt they both wanted the same thing, which is an appropriate result for both the timeshare residents and the guests of the hotel.    
	Mr. Roberts clarified that they have owners, not transients that come and go.  
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Matt Mitts, Assistant City Engineer.  
	Mr. Mitts said that he reviewed the drainage elements of this plan.  He explained in drainage reviews they look to see where the runoff is going.  The other thing they look at is water quality.  He reported that they looked at the impervious area they currently have on the site and then they looked at what they would be increasing it by, which fell under the City’s threshold of 1,500 square feet.  This means that the net impervious area they are adding did not trip a requirement for them to have more retention.  He reported that the runoff would work as it presently works.
	Mr. Lauffer said then the runoff would not go to the Resort’s property.
	Mr. Mitts said that is correct.  
	Mr. Daige asked where are they placing the walk-in freezer.
	Mr. Roberts said it would be to the east along the property line.  He reported that the pool equipment is sitting in the setback area.  
	Mr. Lauffer asked where on the plans does it show the walk in freezer.
	Mr. McGarry explained that the freezer was not part of this application.  
	Mr. Jack Barrian (spelling may be incorrect) said that he has been sworn in.  He said that he is the Treasurer for the Reef Ocean Resort.  He reported almost 300 people own time in Building 100 and he was concerned about the money because the people who own in this building are not going to be happy.  
	Ms. Beverly Myers said that she has been sworn in.  She briefly went over a prepared statement that she submitted into the record (attached to the original minutes).  She said the people, the turtles, and the environment does not need this.
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. John Anderson.  Mr. Anderson said that his family owns five (5) units at the Reef Ocean Resort and they discussed purchasing another unit today.  The reason he brought this up was because the statement that only 15% of the residents responded was erroneous (they submitted one (1) form of being opposed to the project for five (5) units that are owned by himself, his wife, and their sons).  
	Mrs. Hillman asked Mr. Anderson if he was referring to owning six (6) units or six (6) months.  
	Mr. Anderson said they own six (6) weeks that they use as a family.  They submitted one (1) form, not six (6) forms.  
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Charles Hankle (spelling may be incorrect).  
	Mr. Hankle said that he owns week 23 and 24 in Building 100.  This tiki bar is going to be 25 feet from his window.  He did not think it was fair.  He questioned why they can’t move the tiki bar to the other side of the property.  
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Ms. Theresa Williams.
	Ms. Williams said that she owns two (2) weeks and she enjoys going to sleep listening to the ocean.  She said they don’t build a bandstand if they are not going to have a band.  She felt that her vacation has been spoiled just by thinking about this.  
	Mr. Croteau said the hotel currently has seating in the area.  He asked has there been a problem.
	Ms. Williams answered no.  She said the lights have been a continuing problem for the turtles.  If they have a bandstand she would have a problem because she likes the quiet and wants to relax.
	Mr. Croteau said there are no plans to have a bandstand.  
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Ms. Barbara Jafrita (spelling may be incorrect).
	Ms. Jafrita said that she was not against development, but she does understand their concerns.  She said not only does light disturb the turtles, but noise does as well.  She said the parking situation is impossible.  
	Ms. Dorene Pinkerton said that she has been sworn in.  She said that she has been in Vero Beach since 1974 and they purchased their unit in 1979 or 1980.  They are upstairs in the 300 building above Bobby’s Restaurant.  She said that she does not want to hear music, whether it is a band or not.  She did not think that shrubbery was going to be a sound barrier from the types of plants that can grow on the beach.  She echoed everyone who has spoken today.  
	Mr. David Cederhome said that he has been sworn in.  He reported that he lives in the Moorings and has been in Vero Beach for more than 20 years.  He said that his sons came home to attend a wedding and after the wedding they went to the bar at the hotel.  They called him to pick them up at around 10:00 p.m. or 11:00 p.m. and there were still about 40 or 50 people there, most of whom were drinking.  There was no supervision as to how much alcohol was being served to them.  
	Ms. Elli McElroy said that she has been sworn in.  She reported that she lives in Village Spires and enjoys going to the Cobalt Restaurant and to the hotel.  She felt that the hotel has always been conscientious about being a good neighbor.   She said that she was concerned about the tiki bar, particularly for the residents of the Reef Ocean Resort.  She felt that there was a compromise possible, which is to put the tiki bar near the current building and still use their expanded space for dining.  
	Mr. Lauffer explained that they, as a Board, cannot try to influence anyone unless they are in violation of one of the rules.  Currently, the hotel is in compliance and they have the right to locate the tiki bar where they want it to be.  
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Frank Cole (spelling may be incorrect).
	Mr. Cole said that he and his wife own five (5) weeks.   The problem that he has heard today is twofold.  They keep discussing dining and if it is just dining then why are they moving the bar further towards the ocean.  They already have a bar that is covered.  If they are interested in having a cover for dining, that is fine.  He said that he has not heard what time they close.  He asked do they close at 10:00 p.m. when the music stops or do they stay open until 2:00 a.m.  Opening an additional bar area is going to bring more people, which will cause more parking problems.  He asked the Board to think about the outcome for the following years before they make their decision.
	Mr. Rick Muller said that he has been sworn in.  He said that he has been a resident of Vero Beach since he was 24 years old.   He said over the past few years it seems like things are changing.  He said a band has been playing every day and every evening just down the street from them and a few years ago that didn’t happen.  He reported that he has three generations who own seven (7) weeks at the Reef Ocean Resort.   He asked the Board to consider what Vero Beach has always been and known as and what has been done to keep it from becoming a “Daytona Beach.”  He said that it is starting to go into that direction.  He said that he lives in northern Ohio and comes a long way to be here.  He said that he has been coming here for 32 years.
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in Ms. Debbie Heathan (spelling may be incorrect), 
	Ms. Heathan said that she is the Manager of the Reef Ocean Resort and she does get noise complaints on the bar that is currently there.  She liked that they typically close around 10:00 p.m.  She asked will the new tiki bar close at 10:00 p.m.  She asked will the bar be shut down at 10:00 p.m. or will there be people 25 feet from her 100 building talking until 2:00 a.m.  She said there might not be music after 10:00 p.m., but there are a lot of voices heard until 2:00 a.m.  She said bars are permitted to stay open until 2:00 a.m.  She asked will this be one of them.  She said at 8:00 a.m. parking on both sides of the strip are filled by employees of the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa.  She asked are they going to be terminated.  She said the shuttle stops at 6:00 p.m. and there are about 300 employees in the afternoon/evening shift who have to park somewhere so they are parking along the street.    
	Mrs. Hillman asked Ms. Heathan if she has ever received any complaints about Bobby’s Restaurant being open until 2:00 a.m.
	Ms. Heathan said Bobby’s closes at 1:00 a.m. and they don’t allow their customers on the outside patio after midnight.
	Mrs. Hillman said that she has been there when people have been on the patio past midnight.
	Ms. Heaton said her Security Guard is there to insure that if there are people on the patio that they keep the noise down.   
	Mr. Heaton said that he doesn’t know where their afternoon/evening employees park.  They are not permitted to park on site and if they are parking on the street they could be ticketed because they are only allowed to park there for a certain amount of time.  They do not permit their employees to leave in order to move their vehicles from one space to another.    
	Ms. Heathan asked how long the bar will be open.
	Mr. Heaton said they are allowed to stay open as late at Bobby’s is allowed to be open, but they don’t.  They close around 10:00 p.m. and he didn’t think this would be any different.  This is a facility for their guests, although they do have outside people come to the bar.  He said they do not have bands and if they do it is during the day and it is not a five (5) piece band.  He said they do have music playing from their speakers by the pool every day.
	Mr. McGarry asked would you be willing to close the tiki bar at 10:00 p.m.
	Mr. Heaton answered no.  He said there haven’t been any complaints that he is aware of.  He said there was an issue with the turtles and they put up screening to stop them from crawling onto their property.  
	Ms. Heathan said they could stay open until 2:00 a.m.
	Mr. Heaton said that is correct.  
	Ms. Heathan said their employees are recommended to take the shuttle, which stops at 6:00 p.m.  She said nothing is being done about the employees who are parking on the street.
	Mr. Heaton said their employees are not required to take the shuttle, but they are not permitted to park on site.  He clarified that Vero Beach Hotel and Spa is a condo/hotel.  There are owners who are allowed to use the units 45 days a year.  He said that they love Vero Beach and are heavily invested in Vero Beach.  They don’t want this community to turn into a “South Beach.”  He said there is an existing bar that has been there since 2007.  There will not be a bandstand and there will not be a band playing on a daily basis.  He said they don’t want complaints from their guests so they are not going to have bands/noise disturbing them.  That is why the beach bar closes early.  He said they cannot control where people park, but they do provide free valet parking.  He noted that the lighting under the bar was approved by the DEP and would not be facing the beach area.  
	Mrs. Minuse asked if she was correct that there were no major changes except putting a roof over the bar and dining tables.   
	Mr. Heaton said it would be shifted a little, but the business already exists.  He said they do have a band that plays on some weekends, but it is a steel drum type of band.  They do have music playing daily by the pool, which they wouldn’t have if they were receiving complaints.
	Mr. Croteau said the difference in what is currently there and what is being proposed is an additional 22 seats.
	The Board took a break at 4:15 p.m. and the meeting reconvened at 4:21 p.m.
	Mr. David Cedarhome said that he heard the comment that this is an existing facility and they were merely putting a roof on.  He asked what is their projected change in revenue as a result of this and what percentage of additional traffic are they projecting.   
	Mr. Lauffer asked Mrs. Lyon if these were fair questions to be asking the applicant.
	Mrs. Lyon said it is up to the applicant if he wants to respond. 
	Mr. Heaton said they are not expecting a large increase in revenue or in traffic.  He said it is just a better amenity for their hotel guests.  
	Ms. Beverly Myers said that she knows this is a done deal because the project is within Code and it is going to pass.  She said being within the Code doesn’t make it right.  She said the Code needs to be revised.  She said what they are doing by repositioning the facilities is taking the impact away from their guests and putting it on the residents of the Reef Ocean Resort. 
	Mr. Roberts clarified that they were not putting a roof over what is currently there.  The concern is the concentration of 72 seats at the bar and another 46 seats within 150 feet of the line.  The noise problem is a “concentration” problem that is going to come from the bar.    
	Mr. McGarry said staff has not heard any testimony that was substantial competent evidence.  There are concerns, but staff finds this meets the Code and should be approved.  
	Mr. Daige asked can the tiki bar be moved.
	Mr. Lauffer noted that they would have to change the entire site plan. 
	The Chairman closed the public hearing at 4:31 p.m., with no one else wishing to be heard.
	Mr. Croteau asked did staff discuss an alternate location for the tiki bar.
	Mr. McGarry said staff raised some concerns about it, but there were other constraints that the Vero Beach Hotel and Spa would have if they moved it.  
	Mrs. Hillman asked is it possible to put a wall on the side of the tiki bar that abuts the Reef Ocean Resort.  
	Mr. Heaton said that is not something they would do because it is an open air facility.  He said they would be happy to look into some type of sound screening.  
	Mrs. Minuse thanked everyone for coming to today’s hearing and voicing their concerns.  She felt that their concerns have been addressed, noting that parking is a problem on the barrier island and the City has been working on it.  
	Mr. Cahoy referred to condition five (5) of staff’s report where it states, “The applicant shall meet with the Planning and Development Department to discuss appropriate options for accommodating parking of employees within 60 calendar days of the termination of the GoLine.”  He felt this condition was open-ended, had no teeth, and should be taken out.  
	Mr. Wells made a motion that the Board approves Site Plan Application #SP15-000013 with conditions listed by staff.  Mrs. Minuse seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 with Mr. Wells voting yes, Mrs. Hillman yes, Mr. Croteau yes, Mrs. Minuse yes and Mr. Lauffer yes.
	V. PLANNING DEPARTMENT MATTERS
	None
	VI. BOARD MEMBERS’ MATTERS
	Mr. James O’Connor reported that the City is in the process of changing the three-hour parking to two-hour parking on the beachside at the request of the Vero Beach Retailer’s Association and the Oceanside Business Association.
	VII. ADJOURNMENT
	Today’s meeting adjourned at 4:48 p.m.
	/sp


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /All
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket true
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /UseDeviceIndependentColor
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType true
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (North America Web/Internet)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<


    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>



    /HUN <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 6.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>


    /SKY <>

    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


